
CITY OF DUNDEE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Fire Hall Community Room 

801 N. Highway 99W, Dundee, OR 97115 
City Hall Phone: (503) 538-3922 Website:www. DundeeCity.org 

The Mission of Cihj Government is to provide essential, qualihj public services in 
support of the livability, safehj and viabilihJ of the Dundee communihj. 

SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 7 - 9 PM. 
Times printed are estimates. Actual time may vary. 

1. Open Regular City Council Meeting 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Amendments to the Agenda, if any 

4. Public Comment: Each speaker will be allowed up to 5 minutes to speak after being recognized by 
the Mayor. Councilors will generally not respond to comments except to ask clarifying questions. 
Council may direct concerns raised by the speaker to the City Administrator or place the issue of 
concern on the agenda for Council discussion. 

5. Presentation: 2020 Federal Census - James Graham, U.S. Census Bureau Pages 1-4 

6. Consent Agenda: The following items are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be 
no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member (or a citizen through a Council member) so requests, in 
which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately. If any item involves a 
potential conflict of interest, Council members should so note before adoption of the Consent Agenda. 

7. 

8. 

6.1 City Council Minutes, August 20, 2019 
6.2 Financial Report Ending July 31, 2019 
6.3 Proclamation - 2020 Census 
6.4 OLCC Liquor License Application, Willamette Picnic, LLC 

Action Required: Motion to Accept the Consent Agenda 

Old Business: 
7.1 MBR Manual Clean Bids 

Action Requested 
7.2 Fire Station Repairs 

Action Requested 
7.3 Highway 99W Street Light Project Update 

Discussion 

New Business: 
8.1 Resolution No. 2019-11, Disability Policy Amendment 

Action Requested 
8.2 Parks Advisory Committee Appointment 

Action Requested 

Pages 5-12 
Pages 13-34 
Pages 35-36 
Pages 37-44 

Pages 45-50 

Pages 51-54 

Pages 55-56 

Pages 57-60 

Pages 61-64 

1 





9. Council Concerns & Committee Reports 

10. Mayor's Report 

11. City Administrator Report 

12. Public Comment: Each speaker will be allowed up to 5 minutes to speak after being recognized by 
the Mayor. Out of courtesy for the speaker, please refrain from talking. 

13. Executive Session: In accordance with ORS 192.660 (2)(h) to consult with counsel concerning the 
legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed. 

14. Adjourn 

********************************************************************************************************************** 

Pending Business: 
1. Public Works 

1.1 Highway 99W Street Lighting 
1.2 ODOT Phase B Highway 99W Improvements 

2. Planning/Land Use 
2.1 Dundee Riverside District Code Amendment 
2.2 Exterior Lighting - Code Update/Street Light Standards 
2.3 Helipad Standards 
2.4 Pending Type II or Type Ill Land Use Applications: 

2.4.1 (none) 

3. City Council 
3.1 Update SOC Methodologies 
3.2 LID 2013-01 Final Assessment Ordinance 
3.3 Storm Drain Master Plan Update 

4. Parks & Trails 
4.1 Harvey Creek Trail Property Rehabilitation 
4.2 WWTP Nature Park 

5. Next Available Ordinance & Resolution No's. 
5.1 Ordinance No. 571-2020 
5.2 Resolution No. 2019-12 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in 
advance of the meeting to the Administrative Assistant at City Hall (503) 538-3922. 

2 





The census 
counts every 
person living in 
the U.S. once, 
only once, and in 
the right place. 

The distribution of ' 
more than $675 billion (J 
in federal funds, \] 
grants and support to 
states, counties and 
communities are 
based on census data. 

That money is spent on 
schools, hospitals, 
roads, public works and 
other vital programs. 

The U.S. Constitution mandates 
that everyone in the country be 
counted every 10 years. The first 
census was in 1790. 

k 

Every 10 years, 
the results of the 
census are used to 
reapportion the 
House of 
Representatives, 
determining how 
many seats each 
state gets. 

[] 

After each decade's census, state 
officials redraw the boundaries of the 
congressional and state legislative 
districts in their states to account for 
population shifts. 

Completing the census 
is mandatory: it's a way 
to participate in our 
democracy and say 
"I COUNT!" 

-1-



Residents use the census to 
support community 
initiatives involving 
legislation, quality-of-life 
and consumer advocacy. 

r priva 
is protec e 
It's against the law for the 
Census Bureau to publicly 
release your responses in any 
way that cou Id identify you or 
your household. 

By law, your responses cannot 
be used against you and can 
only be used to produce 
statistics. 

a 

Businesses use census 
data to decide where 
to build factories, 
offices and stores, 
which create jobs. 

Local governments 
use the census for 
public safety and 
emergency 
preparedness. 

DD 
DD Real estate 

developers use 
the census to build 
new homes and 
revitalize ofd 
neighborhoods. 

0 
ier 

In 2020, you will be 
able to respond to the 
census online. 

p 

e 

You are the expert-we need 
your ideas on the best way to 
make sure everyone in your 
community gets counted. 

-2-



OREGON 
~n fY2016, Oregon received! 

~~ lJ 3 u&U, S) ~ u (Q) ~ ~, u ~ /) 7J 
through 55 federal spending programs 
guidled by data derived from tlhe 2010 Census. 

I 

/ 

r 
f 

The Counting for Dollars 2020 Project aims to understand 1) the extent to which the federal government 
will rely on data from the 2020 Census to guide the distribution of federal funding to states, loca lities, and 
households across the nation and 2) the impact of the accuracy of the 2020 Census on the fair, equ itabl e 
distribution of these funds. 

The project has analyzed spending by state for 55 federaB programs 
($883,094,826,042 in FY2016). Three types of programs are analyzed: 

0 Domestic financial assistance programs provide financial ass istance - including direct 
payments to individuals, grants, loans, and loan guarantees - to non-federal entities within 
the U.S. - such as individuals and families, state and loca l governments, companies, and 
nonprofits- in order to fulfill a public purpose. 

0 Tax credit programs allow a specia l exclusion, exemption, or deduction from gross income or 
provide a special credit, a preferential rate of tax, or a deferral of tax liability. 

e Procurement programs award a portion of Federal prime contract dollars to sma ll businesses 
located in areas se lected on the basis of census-derived data. 

The four uses of census-derived datasets to geographically allocate 
funding are: 

0 Define eligibility criteria -that is, identify which organizations or individuals can receive fu nds. 

" Compute formulas that geographically allocate funds to e ligible recipients. 

0 Rank project applications based on priorities (e.g., sma ll er towns, poorer neighborhoods). 

0 Set interest rates for federal loan programs. 

The two categories of census-derived datasets are: 

0 Geographic classifications -the characterization (e.g., rural), delineation (e.g., Metropolitan 
Areas), or designation (e.g., Opportunity Zones) of specific geographic areas. 

0 Variable datasets 

o Annual updates of population and housing variables collected in the Decennial Census. 

o Household surveys collecting new data e lements (e.g., income, occupation) by using the 
Decennial Census to design representative samples and interpret results. 

GW Institute 
of Public Policy 
THE GEO RGE WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY -3-

Report - of the Counting 
for Dollar 20 Project: 

> Repo . ··1: Initial Ana lysis: 16 La rge 
Census-guided Financial Assistance 
Programs (August 2017)* 

) Re ort "2. Estimating Fiscal Costs 
of a Census Unde rcount to States 
(March 2018)* 

> art QJ · Ro le of the Decennia l 
Census in Distributing Federa l Funds 
to Rura l America (December 2018)* 

> R p rt t#4: Census-derived Datasets 
Used to Distribute Federa l Funds 
(December 2018) 

>- e ort #5: Analysis of 55 Large 
Census-guided Federal Spending 
Programs (forthcoming ) *·~ 

> Report 16: An Inventory of 320 
Census-guided Federal Spending 
Programs (forthcoming) 

* Data available by state 
+ Source for this state she t 

--- For further in formation: ---

Anuclrew Reamer, Research Profess or 
The George Washington University 

areamer@gwu .edu 



COUNTING FOR DOLLARS 2020: 

OREGON 
Allocation of Funds from 55 large IFedera ~ Spending Programs 
Guided by Data Derived from the 2010 Census (Fiscal Year 2016) 

Total Program Obligations: $11 ~0diJ.~~ 0 @33~)-~ffff 

Program Dept. Obligations Program 

Financial Assistance Programs $13,201,492,721 

Medical Assistance Program {M edica id ) HHS $6,686,260,000 Community Facilities Loans/Grants 

Federal Direct Student Loans ED $1,297,898,394 Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program USDA $1,072,982, 185 Crime Victim Assistance 

Medicare Suppl. Medical Insurance (Part B) HHS $489,832,396 CDBG Entitlement Grants 

Highway Plann ing and Construction DOT $506, 975,879 Public Housing Capital Fund 

Federal Pell Grant Program ED $318,600,000 
Block Grants for the Prevention and Treatment 
of Substance Abuse 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers HUD $245,500,000 
Water and Waste Disposal Systems for 
Rural Communities 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families HHS $184,305 ,610 Social Services Block Grant 

Very Low to Moderate Income Housing Loans USDA $376,461,086 Rural Rental Assistance Paym ents 

Title I Grants to LEAs ED $145,951 ,242 Business and Industry Loans 

State Children 's Health Insurance Program HHS $211,331,000 
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants 
to States 

National School Lunch Program USDA $117,760,000 Homeland Security Grant Program 

Special Education Grants ED $131,743,911 WIOA Dislocated Worker Grants 

Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program HUD $60, 702, 906 HOME 

Federal Transit Formula Grants DOT $ 113,268,000 State CDBG 

Head Start HHS $136,355,820 WIOA Youth Activities 

WIC USDA $77,785,000 WIOA Adult Activities 

Title IV-E Foster Care HHS $119, 121,770 Employment Service/Wagner-Peyser 

Health Care Centers HHS $87,805,982 Community Services Block Grant 

School Breakfast Program USDA $39,415,000 
Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C, 
Nutrition Services 

Rural Electrification Loans and Loan Guarantees USDA $0 Cooperative Extension Service 

Public and Indian Housing HUD $18,714,000 Native Amer. Employment & Tra ining 

Low Income Home Energy Assistance HHS $35,704,456 

Child and Adult Care Food Program USDA $35,408,000 Federa l Tax Expenditures 

Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to the States ED $51,293,087 Low Income Housing Tax Credit 

· Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds HHS $38,761,000 New Markets Tax Credit 

Unemployment Insurance Administration DOL $55,779,000 

Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants DOT $102,064, 145 Federal Procurement Programs 

Child Care and Deve lopment Block Grant HHS $30,6 73,000 HUBZones Program 

Adoption Assistance HHS $51,299,298 

Dept. 

USDA 

ED 

DOJ 

HUD 

HUD 

HHS 

USDA 

HHS 

USDA 

USDA 

ED 

OHS 

DOL 

HUD 

HUD 

DOL 

DOL 

DOL 

HHS 

HHS 

USDA 

DOL 

Treas 

Treas 

SBA 

Obligations 

$2,262,022 

$21,691,343 

$27,651,313 

$19,614,587 

$8,874,000 

$20,578,346 

$16,551 ,707 

$19,617,883 . 

$28,022,225 

$86,287,000 

$13,546,508 

$6,799,000 

$13,807,125 . 

$13,984,612 . 

$12,055,779 

$11,441,241 

$10,554,128 

$8,717,268 . 

$5,700,794 

$8, 760,086 

$4,795,544 

$428,043 

$181 ,555,61 s 
$107,970,134 . 

$73,585,481 

$68,986,542 

$68, 986,542 

Prepared by Andrew Reamer, the George Washington Institute of Public Policy, the George Washington Univers ity. Spending d ata ana lys is provided by Sean Mou lton, Open Government 
Program Manager, Proj ect on Government Oversight. I J anua1y 30, 2019 

Note: The sequence of the above programs is consistent with U.S. rank order by program expenditures. {See U.S. sheet in series. ) 

['.i Co unting fo r Dollars 2020 publications and spreadsheet with above data ava ilab le at 
https://gwip p.g wu.edu/cou otin9-do ll ars-2020-ro le-d eceonial-ceosus-oPogra phic-d istri butioo-fed eral-funds 

GW Institute 
of Public Policy 
THE GEORGE WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 

-4-

For further information : 

Andrew Reamer, Research Professor 
The George Washington University 

areamer@gwu.edu 



crrnr COllJJNClIIL MIEIETJIN(GJ 
uAIBllE O!F CONTlENu§ !FO~ MJINlUJulE§ 

Al!.Il~l!.Ils\t 2!0l, 2!0l1~ 

Call to Order ........................................................................................................................... 2 
Council and Staff Attendance ..... ...... ...................................................................... .................. 2 
Public Attendance ................................................................................................................... 2 
Agenda Changes ..... ............. ......................... .............. .. ....... ................................................. .. 2 
Public Hearing: LURA 18-01, Riverside Zone Code and Map Amendment.. ................................. 2 
Public Comment ...................................................................................................................... 4 
Consent Agenda ...................................................................................................................... 4 
Old Business ........................................................................................................................... 4 

Ordinance No. 570-2019, Dog Running at Large ................................................................ 4 
Resolution No. 2019-10, Intent to Initiate Street Vacation .................................................. 5 

New Business ......................................................................................................................... 5 
Transportation System Development Charge Study ............................................................ 5 
2019 SCA Grant Agreement Amendment ................... ; ............................. ; ......................... 6 
Parks Advisory Committee Appointments .......................................................................... 6 

Council Concerns and Committee Reports ................................................................................. 6 
Mayor's Report ........................................................................................................................ 7 
City Administrator's Report ...................................................................................................... 7 
Public Comment ................................... ................................................................................... 7 

1 
-5-

I 



Ca~~ ~o Oirderr 

Cnty of Jihmdlee 
Cnty CmnJmdR Meetnllllg Mimnte§ 

Au.ngu.rnt 209 2019 

City Council President Tim Weaver called the meeting to order at 7:01 P .M. 

ColUl111crn ©iwud S~ain AUe~dam:e 
Present: Council President Tim Weaver; Councilors Kristen Svicarovich, Jeannette Adlong, Storr 
Nelson, Ted Crawford, and Patrick Kelly. Absent: Mayor David Russ. Staff members: Rob 
Daykin, City Administrator; Bill Monahan, City Attorney; Cheryl Caines, City Planner; Greg 
Reid, City Engineer; and Melissa Lemen, Administrative Assistant. 

fPllJllb~~c AUemfa111ce 
Kay Edwards, River Farm, LLC; and Rod Grinberg, Lindquist Family. 

Agelrild©i Chai111ges 
None. 

Pulb!oc Hearh11g: LURA 18~01, Riverside Zone Code au11d Map 
Ame111dme111t 

Council President Weaver reopened the legislative hearing at 7:03 P.M. to consider accepting the 
proposed amendments to the Development Code and Zoning Map for implementation of the 
Riverside District Master Plan. 

CaH for Deda1rntions of Conflict or Bias by aJrny members of this lbody: 
None. 

Objections to jurnsdlictnon lby any memlber of this bodly: 
None. 

Staff Report 
Planner Cheryl Caines introduced herself and explained that this is a continuation of the Riverside 
amendments from July 2, 2019. She reviewed that at that hearing Staff presented the proposed 
amendments, which include map amendments and code amendments. Planner Caines discussed 
the proposed zoning in detail as well as explained that standards for commercial, industrial and 
residential are also proposed. She discussed that density and housing type requirements for 
residential development are proposed, as well as amendments including standards for parks and 
trails and a new process to review master plans for the subareas in the Riverside District. 

Planner Caines reviewed that at the City Council meeting on July 2, 2019, Council asked 
questions of Staff and the consultant for the Riverside zoning project, heard public testimony and 
deliberated. She reviewed that Staff presented the proposed amendments, including map 
amendments and code amendments, which were discussed in detail. Design standards for 
commercial, industrial and residential were also proposed as well as density and housing type 
requirements for residential development. Amendments also included standards for parks and 
trails as well as a new process to review master plans for the subareas in the Riverside District. 
Planner Caines discussed that Council's main topic of discussion was with regard to the proposed 
Code and the allowance of residential-only development in the Riverside Neighborhood Mixed 

2 
-6-



Use (RN) and the Riverside Destination Mixed Use (RD) zones. She explained that the Code had 
proposed up to 75% of the net area in those mixed use zones could be developed as residential 
only. Planner Caines discussed that Council expressed concerns about allowing the 75% amount 
and proposed reducing it to 50%. She discussed in detail the reasons for Council's proposal of 
50%, including the retention of sufficient land for commercial development. At the conclusion of 
their deliberation on July 2, Planner Caines explained that Council directed Staff to make 
modifications to the Code including changing the 75% to 50%, as well as adding a minimum 
density requirement for the residential-only development to be at least 14 units per acre (to ensure 
that there would be higher density residential development) in those mixed use zones. With the 
proposed increase to a minimum of 14 units per acre, there was also some discussion about the 
potential impacts of increasing the minimum density to that amount. Planner Caines explained 
that Matt Hastie, Angelo Planning Group, did provide a memo which was provided to Council 
tonight (and is included in the agenda packet materials). Planner Caines discussed Hastie's 
memo in detail. She explained that the results of his analysis indicate a potential 6% net increase 
in traffic for developing the entire Riverside District, which he pointed out was a very minimal 
difference .. Additionally, she explained that the analysis revealed that there would also not be a 
significant impact on infrastructure which would require an increased need or capacity with the 
infrastructure. 

Planner Caines explained that back when this Code was going through the Planning Commission 
process, there was some discussion about the types of units that would be allowed in the 
residential-only development. She explained that at the February 20, 2019 public hearing the 
Planning Commission did decide to allow all types of residential development. Planner Caines 
explained that in error she did not make that update in the Code as it moved forward; the Code 
that was in the Planning Commission packet, as well as the City Council agenda packets from 
July 2, 2019 and tonight, do state that single family residential and duplexes are not permitted 
currently in the RN and RD zone. Planner Caines also noted that though she did not recall 
extensive discussion about specific types of housing on July 2, 2019, she did wish to clarify this 
information with Council and whether they would want to allow single family and duplexes in the 
mixed use zones (residential-only development) or if they would want to leave the code as it is 
now. Planner Caines briefly discussed the other minor code modifications. In addition, she 
explained that one additional Council-directed amendment was to allow marijuana dispensaries 
and retail outlet use in the RN and the RD zones; that change was made also. 

Planner Caines aclmowledged Mayor Russ' email which he sent in his absence, a copy of which 
was provided to Council for their review as we!! as to audience members. 

Public Testimony 
Kay Edwards, P.O. Box 455, Dundee, introduced herself and inquired as to whether Council had 
any questions with regard to Mayor Russ' email. She explained that in her opinion that there is 
not appropriate access for trucks to serve the commercial area. Additionally, Edwards discussed 
that when the original Master Plan was completed, it was done before the bypass; with the 
addition of the bypass there is no longer adequate space or access for a large commercial area in 
her opinion. Additional discussion ensued with regard to the complexities associated with access 
to the commercial area. 

There was no additional public testimony, and C. Weaver closed the public testimony p01iion of 
the Hearing. 

Colllncil Deliberation 
C.A. Daykin offered clarification with regard to M. Russ' emailed statement. He explained that 
when M. Russ references the CBD zone in his letter, it is C.A. Daykin's belief that he means to 

-7-
3 



reference the RN zone in the Riverside District. One of the points M. Russ raised, which was 
raised by Planner Caines earlier, is that the Planning Commission intended the conve1ied lands in 
the mixed use part of the zoning to permit detached single family homes as well as duplexes. 
Additional detailed discussion ensued. 

C. Crawford discussed that though M. Russ has made suggestion in the past that the bypass could 
have an off-ramp in Dundee (Dundee Landing area), he does not agree with that. He pointed out 
that in his opinion the best route for access for commercial development would be for the road to 
go through the Pamplin prope1iy to the no1ih; he voiced this could be a possibility if there were a 
land swap to adjust the UGB boundary. C. Crawford discussed the impo1iance of this 
connectivity (to Fifth Street) as the area builds out and commercial or mixed use development is 
desired in the Riverside area. 

C. Adlong requested additional clarification with regard to the Planning Commission 
recommendations and as that relates to M. Russ' emailed statement. Detailed explanation 
provided and questions answered. In summary, it was noted that if the Code were retained as it is 
today, the Mayor's concerns have already been addressed. C. Svicarovich voiced supp01i of 
retaining the Code the way it is written and not allowing single family or duplexes in mixed use 
zones. C. Adlong, C. Nelson, and C. Kelly voiced support of this as well. 

C. Adlong pointed out a typo on page 5 of the meeting agenda packet (in the Staff Report), in the 
third paragraph. The sentence: "Councilors did not agree that allowing up to 75% of the mixed 
use area to be residential only development was not consistent with the vision of the Riverside 
District Master Plan" and should state "Councilors agreed that allowing up to 7 5% of the mixed 
use area to be residential only development was not consistent with the vision of the Riverside 
District Master Plan." C. Crawford informed of an additional typo on page 61, Exhibit B: 
Riverside District Zoning Map Amendments. He noted that on the map "Dunding Landing 
Road" should be written "Dundee Landing Road". 

A motion was made to adopt Resolution No. 2019-09, a resolution accepting the proposed 
amendments to the Dundee Development Code and Dundee Zoning Map to Implement the 
Riverside District Master Plan and Directing Staff to Initiate an Infrastructure Finance Plan for 
the Riverside District and any necessary updates to the Comprehensive Plan, Infrastructure Plans, 
Transp01iation System Plan, and Public Works and Design and Construction Standards. Brief 
discussion was had and the motion was amended to include the two typographical error 
corrections which were raised by C. Adlong and C. Crawford. 'fhe motion. passed unanimously. 

PubHc Comment 
Rod Grinberg, representing the Lindquist Family, apologized for his late arrival to the meeting. 
C.A. Daykin provided an update to Grinberg with regard to the results of the Public Hearing. 

Consent Agenda 
A motion was made and seconded to approve Consent Agenda Item 6.1 City Council Minutes, 
August 6, 2019. The motion passed unanimously. 

Old Business 

Ordinance No. 570-20].9, Dog Running at La:rge 
C.A. Daykin reviewed the changes reflected in the new ordinance. A motio.n was made and 
seconded to adopt Ordinance No. 570-2019, an ordinance relating to dogs running at large and 
amending section 6.04.010 of the Dundee Municipal Code. C. Weaver inquired as to whether 
this ordinance is consistent with the City ofNewberg's to which C.A. Daykin indicated that their 

4 
-8-



regulation would not necessarily require the animal to be leashed. 'flhte mo11:forrn passed 
unanimously. 

Resohntnorrn No. 2019-rn, foterrnt fo fontfafo §tireet Vacatforrn 
C.A. Daykin reviewed that this issue was raised by the ODOT Project Director at the previous 
Council meeting for their consideration. C.A. Daykin referenced materials provided in the 
agenda packet beginning on page 105, as well as provided a map of ODOT's highway 
improvement plan for their review. C. Svicarovich requested clarification and C.A. Daykin 
offered that if City Council were to intend to vacate the Second Street stub serving the propetiy 
on the west side of the highway (the vacant lands that could be developed commercially), he 
would propose that the City also request the two owners (presently one owner with two separate 
legally defined parcels) provide each other an access easement for a p01iion of that vacated right
of-way so that it can continue to be used as access for the development of their respected tracts. 
Additional conversation ensued on the street vacation process and questions addressed. C. Atty 
Monahan explained that this is a resolution of intent; when the vacation process is unde1iaken, 
conditions can be placed on that vacation in the adopting ordinance. Discussion ensued. Council 
voiced support of the formation of a shared access agreement for both proposed locations of street 
vacation. C. Svicarovich pointed out that a shared access limits the amount of access onto a State 
highway but it also retains the value for both properties for gaining access onto a State highway. 
C.A. Daykin discussed the process moving forward. A motion. was made and seconded to pass 
Resolution No. 2019-10, a resolution of intent to initiate vacation of Second Street and Fomih 
Street. 'fhe motion passed unanimously. 

Transportation System Development Charge Study 
C.A. Daykin explained that this is a proposal from a smaller engineering firm that works 
exclusively with municipal clients. He reviewed the details of his agenda rep01i begim1ing on 
page 111. It was noted that Curran-McLeod, Inc. has a good reputation of working with smaller 
entities and providing a cost-effective way of developing SDC methodologies. Additionally, 
C.A. Daykin pointed out that if the City of Dundee sought the traditional financial consultants 
who perform this type of work the costs would be easily double or triple the fee proposed by 
Curran-McLeod, Inc. Additional lengthy and detailed discussion ensued. C.A. Daykin discussed 
the potential process moving forward if Council is suppo1iive of the Study. He also explained 
that the local street system will still be built by the developers; with regard to collector streets, 
C.A. Daykin suggested that there should be some shared costs with the greater community. 

C. Nelson inquired about why the City doesn't have transpo1iation SDC's. C.A. Daykin 
explained that when an SDC is adopted there are two components: the improvement component, 
to create additional capacity, and the reimbursement component, that measures the consumption 
of existing capacity. The prior 2003 TSP aclmowledged SDCs as a possible funding source, but 
discounted it based on the City's Development Code policies that already require development to 
upgrade sub-standard streets, most of which do not increase capacity beyond a local street. He 
pointed out that SDC credits are only for the improvements that are on the capital improvement 
plant; if credits are received they are only for the system being built. Where a transp01iation SDC 
makes sense is for the construction of needed system capacity improvements that are not directly 
tied to a paiiicular development. A motion was made and seconded to authorize the city 
administrator to contract with Curran-McLeod, Inc. Consulting Engineers in an amount not to 
exceed $8,000 for the preparation ofTransp01iation SDC. The motion passed unanimously. 

-9-
5 



2~19 §CA Gnn11d Ag1neemellllt Amelllldlm~mt 
C.A. Daykin reviewed that last year the City submitted two grant applications for the SCA 2019 
Program, though only one grant was awarded. Since bid prices were very favorable, it appears 
the City would be able to complete the work under the $100,000 limit. He proposed an 
amendment for additional work next to the project site to take advantage of the full grant amount. 
Detailed discussion ensued on additional work related to removal of the ditches on the north side 
of Niederberger. C.E. Reid explained that the ditches will be piped, some culve1is will be 
removed, and the significant drop- off along N eiderberger Road will be filled in so that 
pedestrians will have a 6-8 feet wide gravel walking path; eventually the path may be able to be 
paved. C. Crawford inquired about whether the area could be marked with "No Parking" signs to 
which C.A. Daykin affirmed. A motiollll was made and seconded to authorize the city 
administrator to approve an amendment to the 2019 SCA Grant Agreement for additional work 
involving the installation of storm water facilities and elimination of the drainage ditch on the 
nmih side of Niederberger Road between Charles Street and Alder Street. 1'lh.e motiollll passed 
unanimously. 

Pairlks Adlvisory Committee Apjpoh'dmellJlfa 
It was noted that Noel Johnson is also a member of the Tourism Committee. C.A. Daykin 
explained that a gentleman who is attempting to purchase a home on the east side of Dundee also 
expressed an interest in being involved in the local community. He was apprised of the Parks 
Advisory Committee member vacancy and invited to attend an upcoming meeting as well. A 
motion was made and seconded to appoint Noel Johnson and Beth Humphrey to the Parks 
Advisory Committee. The motion passed unanimously. 

Cm.mic~~ Concerns and Committee Reporfts 
C. Crawford inquired about the status of a trailer which was noted to have been parked on the old 
Bag Connection property located at 459 SW 9th Street. C.A. Daykin discussed that he did send a 
letter as well as an email; the owner plans to remove it. Additional discussion ensued. 

C. Kelly discussed that he had concerns expressed to him from several citizens who attended the 
previous City Council meeting on August 6, 2019. He explained that their concerns were with 
regard to the 5 minute timeframe provided for those addressing Council during public comment. 
C. Kelly discussed that in his opinion those who spoke at the meeting were focused on their topic 
of discussion, and he noted that he would have liked to hear them continue their discussion rather 
than cut them off at the 5 minute mark. He inquired as to whether there is leniency provided 
when needed. C. Weaver acknowledged this concern and discussed that those speaking were 
provided a favorable amount of time beyond a strict 5 minutes, with most provided approximately 
7 minutes. C. Nelson encouraged fellow Councilors to voice these types of concerns as they 
arise, so that providing extra speaking time can be provided if there is Council consensus. C. 
Adlong stressed the impmiance of those addressing Council also understanding the 5 minute time 
allowance so that they are prepared and concise. C. Svicarovich pointed out that, though the 
testimony was very helpful to understand issue, public testimony regarding actual amendments to 
the Code needs to occur in the Planning Commission process which then comes back to Council. 

C. Kelly also discussed that the room set up for the Council meeting on August 6, 2019 may have 
been intimidating to some people who attended. He explained that some in attendance shared 
with him that they felt separated when they came forward to address the Council. It was noted 
that there was also a gentleman from ODOT who was present at the speaking table waiting to 
give a presentation that evening as well. Discussion ensued with regard to the fact that many 
other Council chambers provide an even more formal atmosphere in comparison to Dundee. It 
was also noted that there was an unusually large crowd of people at the meeting that evening as 
well, with all seats in the room filled. C. Svicarovich pointed out that perhaps all of those in 

6 
-10-



attendance have not had the experience of attending a public meeting before. She also suggested 
that when there is a larger crowd it could be beneficial to provide additional instruction and 
explanation to those in attendance. The importance of everyone being heard at meetings was 
noted. C. Svicarovich suggested that a large size posted meeting format may be helpful for those 
in attendance, though it was also noted that the meeting agenda is provided to everyone in 
attendance along with additional explanation provided by the administrative assistant as needed. 

C. Weaver discussed that he attended the Local Government Dinner last week and noted that 
there were thoughts discussed with regard to the McMinnville Homeless Ordinance, which is 
making some very good progress in dealing with the issues in their City. Though he noted that 
the local area has not experienced anything of a similar caliber to McMinnville in this regard, 
local Cities may be forward thinking in that direction. C.A. Daykin encouraged each Councilor 
to participate in the emailed survey regarding the City County dinner program. C. Weaver noted 
that attendance seemed to be down at the recent dinner. 

M©iyor7s Reporrt 
None. 

C~ty Adm~n~stlrator7s Repoirt 
C.A. Daykin discussed that last Friday he received a call from a contractor regarding some excess 
asphalt oil they had on-hand from an airp01ijob and were willing to apply for the City. Though 
some streets were considered, there was not enough time to provide adequate notice to neighbors. 
The material was applied to the City Hall parking lot as well as the access road down to the 
Waste Water Treatment Plant. C.A. Daykin noted that the City Hall parking lot will require new 
striping. 

C.A. Daykin discussed that the PERS Side Account legislation is moving forward now; there is 
$100 million funded for the employee incentive fund. C.A. Daykin provided additional 
discussion about the program, and explained that the City of Dundee will not be eligible for the 
first round. He explained that it will be broken up into two tiers, those that have actuary liability 
more than double their annual payroll - The City of Dundee was in that condition at the end of 
2016, however, at the end of 2017 (which they are measuring) the City fell underneath that so 
will not be eligible for the first round. C.A. Daykin explained that there are 291 eligible agencies. 
The City of Dundee won't be eligible to apply until the second round; applications will be 
accepted beginning on December 2, 2019. 

PUJlbHc Commen~ 
None. 

Attest: 

Rob Daykin, City Administrator/Recorder 

David Russ, Mayor 

7 
-11-



-12-



CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Activities 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 
**UNAUDITED'''' 

::itate 

Street Revenue Equipment 

General Street CIP Reserve Sharing Reserve Tourism Fire Station Water CIP Sewer CIP Storm 'Vater Storm 'Vater 

F und Street Fund Fund Fund Fund F und Parks Fund F und ConstrFund Bonded Debt Water Fund Fund Sewer F und Fund Fund CIP F und Total 

Revenue 
Taxes 12.477 2.5 10 6.080 1.194 22.262 
Franchise Fees 
Licenses & Permits 415 415 
lnternovernmental Revenue 4.865 21.554 26.419 
Char2es for Services 17.795 64.129 99.857 S.060 189.841 
Fines & Forfeitures 5.754 5.754 
Miscellaneous Revenue 2 029 22 536 irn 1 9_27 15 246 l ]6 37 180 903 330 1.123 33 171 7.5;19 

Total Revenu e 43 335 24 ]63 536 88 1 627 1 ~ Q 326 11 g 1 232 64 309 903 100.187 1 ]23 8.093 171 252 229 

Exnenditures 
Personnel 57.029 5.841 21.655 16.965 2.857 104.347 
Materials & Services 18.459 12.566 1.472 13.207 19.294 1.389 66.385 
Caoital Outlav 2.867 490 1.361 4.718 
Debt Service 20 7~ 2 314 49 687 

Total Exnenditures 7~ 488 18 4Q1 23 240 29 ;1 14 120 1 412 :.14 86 1 36 258 4 246 l 361 2?5 136 

Excess (defiency) ofRevenue over (32,153) 5,757 (22,704) 88 (27,687) (474) 6,326 (1,356) 1,232 29,448 903 63,929 1,123 3,847 (1,190) 27,093 
Expenditures 

Ot~Financing Sources (Uses) 8.107 (3.114) (60.493) 55.500 

w 
NetlChan2es to Fund Balance (24 045) 5.757 (22 704) 88 (27.687) (474) Q 326 (1.3 56) 1 232 26 333 903 3 436 56 6?3 3.847 (1 190) ?7 093 

Be2innin2 Fund Balance 
609.933 44.768 295.229 44.765 2.051 854.135 8.302 116.093 60.214 17.810 61.982 326.245 159.361 514.092 12.700 87.912 3.215.591 

Ending Fund Balance 585,887 50,525 272,525 44,853 2,056 826,448 7,828 122,419 58,857 19,042 88,315 327,149 162,797 570,715 16,547 86,722 3,242,684 



crny o1 DlUlncdee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

General Fund - 001 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

**UNAUDITED** 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

REVENUES 

Taxes 12,477 12,477 729,500 98.29% 717,023 

Franchise Fees 0 0 149,900 100.00% 149,900 

Licenses & Permits 415 415 73,800 99.44% 73,385 

Intergovernmental Revenue 4,865 4,865 181,700 97.32% 176,835 

Charges for Services 17,795 17,795 . 231,800 92.32% 214,005 

Fines & Forfeitures 5,754 5,754 56,000 89.72% 50,246 

Miscellaneous Revenue 2,029 2,029 17,500 88.41% 15,471 

Total REVENUE 43,335 43,335 1,440,200 96.99% 1,396,865 

EXPENDITURES (by Department) 

01- Adm in I Finance 27,543 27,543 397,100 93.06% 369,557 

02 - Court 3,681 3,681 26,700 86.21% 23,019 

03- Communit Devlopment 4,357 4,357 141,600 96.92% 137,243 

04 - Police Department 0 0 519,100 100.00% 519,100 

05 - Fire Department 39,908 39,908 519,000 92.31% 479,092 

Total EXPENDITURES 75,488 75,488 1,603,500 95.29% 1,528,012 

EXCESS (deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES (32,153) (32,153) (163,300) 80.31% (131,147) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers In 8,107 8,107 96,600 91.61% 88,493 

Transfers Out 0 0 0 NA 0 

Other Uses 0 0 (80,000) 100.00% (80,000) 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0 (40,000) 100.00% (40,000) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (32,153) (32,153) (203,300) 84.18% (171,147) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 609,933 609,933 603,200 1.12% 6,733 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 577,780 577,780 399,900 44.48% 177,880 

- 14-



Crr~y o~ DlUlli1lrdlee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

General Fund - 001 Admin/Finance - 01 
From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel Services 

Salaries & Wages 13,901 13,901 176,800 92.14% 162,899 

Personnel Benefits 8,225 8,225 104,000 92.09% 95,775 

Total Personnel Services 22,126 22,126 280,800 92.12% 258,674 

Materials & Services 

Supplies 113 113 4,200 97.31% 4,087 

Prqfessio_nal Services 1,582 1,5_82 58,100 97.28% 56,518 

Contractual Services 110 110 1,300 91.52% 1,190 

Travel & Training 1,897 1,897 11,100 82.91% 9,203 

Insurance 0 0 9,600 100.00% 9,600 

Regulatory Requirements 0 0 800 100.00% 800 

Utilities 559 559 6,600 91.53% 6,041 

Repairs & Maintenance 395 395 9,400 95.80% 9,005 

Other Materials & Services 760 760 12,400 93.87% . 11,640 

Total Materials & Services 5,417 5,417 113,500 95.23% 108,083 

Capital Outlay 0 0 2,800 100.00% 2,800 

Total ADMIN/FINANCE EXPENDITURES 27,543 27,543 397,100 93.06% 369,557 

-15-



c~~y o1 !DlUl!l1<dlee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

General Fund - 00 I Court - 02 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Tota I Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel Services 

Salaries & Wages 722 722 10,300 92.99% 9,578 

Personnel Benefits 646 646 8,800 92.65% 8,154 

Total Personnel Services 1,368 1,368 19,100 92.84% 17,732 

Materials & Services 

Supplies 0 0 200 100.00% 200 

Professional Services 1,773 1,773 2,300 22.90% 527 

Contractual Services 498 498 3,300 84.91% 2,802 

Travel & Training 0 0 1,100 100.00% 1,100 

Other Materials & Services 42 42 700 94.03% 658 

Total Materials & Services 2,313 2,313 7,600 69.57% 5,287 

Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 

Total COURT EXPENDITURES 3,681 3,681 26,700 86.21% 23,019 

-16-



c~~y o~ !DlUJ!rildee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

General Fund - 00 I Community Development - 03 
From 710112019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 
Current Period Current Year Budget Tota I Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 
EXPENDITURES 

Personnel Services 
Salaries & Wages 853 853 12,200 93.01% 11,347 

Personnel Benefits 764 764 10,400 92.66% 9,636 

Total Personnel Services 1,617 1,617 22,600 92.85% 20,983 

Materials & Services 
Supplies 80 80 500 84.00% 420 

Professional Services 2,660 2,660 61,000 95.64% 58,340 

Contractual Services 0 0 36,000 100.00% 36,000 

Travel & Training 0 0 1,400 100.00% 1,400 

Other Materials & Services 0 0 20,100 100.00% 20,100 

Total Materials & Services 2,740 2,740 119,000 97.70% 116,260 

Total COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
EXPENDITURES 4,357 4,357 141,600 96.92% 137,243 

-17-



EXPENDITURES 

Materials & Services 

Contractual Services 

Total Materials & Services 

Total POLICE DEPT EXPENDITURES 

I 

crny o1 DlUJlrilcdJee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

General Fund - 001 Police Dept - 04 
From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Current Period 

Actual 

Current Year 

Actual Total Budget 

0 0 519,100 

0 0 259,550 

0 0 259,550 

- 18-

Percent Total 

Budget 

Remaininng 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

Tota I Budget 

Variance 

519,100 

259,550 

259,550 



Cuiy O~ !DlUIU1HO~ee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

General Fund - 001 Fire Dept - 05 
From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel Services 

Salaries & Wages 20,587 20,587 236,700 91.30% 216,113 
Personnel Benefits 11,332 11,332 155,900 92.73% 144,568 

Total Personnel Services 31,919 31,919 392,600 91.87% 360,681 

Materials & Services 

Supplies 476 476 16,000 97.03% 15,524 
Professional Services 0 0 800 100.00% 800 
Ccntractual Services 6,137 6,137 25,400 75.84% 19,263 
Travel & Training 138 138 2,100 93.45% 1,963 
Insurance 0 0 17,400 100.00% 17,400 
Regulatory Requirements 35 35 7,500 99.53% 7,465 
Utilities 1,016 1,016 17,900 94.33% 16,884 
Repairs & Maintenance 186 186 13,000 98.57% 12,814 
Other Materials & Services 1 1 300 99.63% 299 

Total Materials & Services 7,989 7,989 100,400 92.04% 92,411 

Capital Outlay 0 0 26,000 100.00% 26,000 

Total FIRE DEPT EXPENDITURES 39,908 39,908 519,000 92.31% 479,092 

-19-



Co~y of Du.nlldlee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Street Fund - 110 
From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 
Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 
REVENUES 

Taxes 2,510 2,510 29,000 91.34% 26,490 

Intergovernmental Revenue 21,554 21,554 240,000 91.02% 218,446 

Miscellaneous Revenue 99 99 1,500 93.37% 1,401 

Total REVENUE 24,163 24,163 270,500 91.07% 246,337 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel Services 5,841 5,841 42,400 86.22% 36,559 

Material & Services 

Supplies 231 231 4,200 94.49% 3,969 
Professional Services 680 680 9,000 92.44% 8,320 
Travel & Training 0 0 500 100.00% 500 
Insurance 0 0 1,900 100.00% 1,900 
Regulatory Requirements 0 0 100 100.00% 100 
Utilities 2,089 2,089 23,800 91.22% 21,711 
Repairs & Maintenance 7,668 7,668 115,900 93.38% 108,232 
lnterfund Services 1,892 1,892 19,600 90.35% 17,708 
Other Materials & Services 6 6 200 97.13% 194 

Total Materials & Services 12,566 12,566 175,200 92.83% 162,634 

Total EXPENDITURES 18,407 18,407 217,600 91.54% 199,193 

EXCESS (deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES 5,757 5,757 52,900 89.12% 47,143 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers Out 0 0 (83,300) 100.00% {83,300) 

Other Uses 0 0 (5,000) 100.00% (5,000) 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0 (88,300) 100.00% {88,300) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5,757 5,757 (35,400) 116.26% (41,157) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 44,768 44,768 43,500 2.92% 1,268 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 50,525 50,525 8,100 523.77% 42,425 

-20-



Cufcy o~ !DQJJrruHee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Street CIP Fund - 110 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 
REVENUES 

Franchise Fees 0 0 43,900 100.00% 43,900 

Intergovernmental Revenue 0 0 600,000 100.00% 600,000 

Miscellaneous Revenue 0 0 57,000 100.00% 57,000 

Total REVENUE 0 0 700,900 100.00% 700,900 

EXPENDITURES 

Capital Outlay 2,867 2,867 1,313,000 99.78% 1,310,133 

Debt Service 20,373 20,373 49,600 58.93% 29,227 

Total EXPENDITURES 23,240 23,240 1,362,600 98.29% 1,339,360 

EXCESS (deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES (23,240) (23,240) (661,700) 96.49% (638,460) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Debt Proceeds 0 0 456,000 100.00% 456,000 

Transfers In 0 0 70,000 100.00% 70,000 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0 526,000 100.00% 526,000 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (23,240) (23,240) (135,700) 82.87% (112,460) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 295,229 295,229 248,800 18.66% 46,429 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 271,989 271,989 113,100 140.48% 158,889 

-21-



c~~y of !Dvrnullee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Street Reserve Fm1d - 112 
From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

REVENUES 

Miscellaneous Revenue 88 88 1,100 91.97% 1,012 

Total REVENUE 88 88 1,100 91.97% 1,012 

EXPENDITURES 

Capital Outlay 0 0 45,800 100.00% 45,800 

Total EXPENDITURES 0 0 45,800 100.00% 45,800 

EXCESS (deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES 88 88 (44,700) 100.20% (44,788) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 88 88 (44,700) 100.20% (44,788) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 44,765 44,765 44,700 0.14% 65 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 44,853 44,853 0 44,853 

-22-



Cu~y o~ [)[U]ndee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

State Revenue Sharing Fund - 122 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 
REVENUES 

Intergovernmental Revenue 0 0 31,000 100.00% 31,000 

Miscellaneous Revenue 5 5 200 97.71% 195 

Total REVENUE 5 5 31,200 99.99% 31,195 

EXPENDITURES 

Material & Services 

Professional Services 0 0 2,500 100.00% 2,500 
Contractual 0 0 11,800 100.00% 11,800 

Total Materials & Services 0 0 14,300 100.00% 14,300 

Capital Outlay 0 0 12,700 100.00% 12,700 

Total EXPENDITURES 0 0 27,000 100.00% 27,000 

EXCESS (deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES 5 5 4,200 99.89% 4,195 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES} 

Transfers Out 0 0 (5,500) 100.00% (5,500) 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES} 0 0 (5,500} 100.00% (5,500} 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5 5 (1,300} 100.35% (1,305) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,051 2,051 1,700 20.66% 351 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 2,056 2,056 400 413.95% 1,656 

-23-



Cfi~y o1 !DlUJ!l1ldee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Equipment Reserve Fund - 127 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/3112019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

REVENUES 

Misce llaneous Revenue 1,627 1,627 37,000 95.60% 35,373 

Total REVENUE 1,627 1,627 37,000 95.60% 35,373 

EXPENDITURES 

Capital Outlay 0 0 915,000 100.00% 915,000 

Debt Service 29,314 29,314 58,700 50.06% 29,386 

·Tota I EXP EN DITl.JRES 29,314 29,314 973,700 96.99% 944,386 

EXCESS {deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES {27,687) (27,687) {936,700) 97.04% {909,013) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers In 0 0 83,200 100.00% 83,200 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0 83,200 100.00% 83,200 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {27,687) (27,687) (853,500) 96.76% (825,813) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 854,135 854,135 853,500 -0.07% (635) 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 826,448 826,448 0 NA (826,448) 

-24-



crny o·~ IDVJ!lllciee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Parks Fund - 131 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

REVENUES 

Intergovernmental Revenue 0 0 32,800 100.00% 32,800 

Miscellaneous Revenue 15 15 2,600 99.41% 2,585 

Total REVENUE 15 15 35,400 99.96% 35,385 

EXPENDITURES 

Materials & Services 

Professiona I Services 0 0 4,000 100.00% 4,000 

Repairs & Maintenance 0 0 5,200 100.00% 5,200 

Total Materials & Services 0 0 9,200 100.00% 9,200 

Capital Outlay 490 490 37,500 98.69% 37,010 

Total EXPENDITURES 490 490 46,700 98.95% 46,210 

EXCESS {deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES (474) (474) (11,300) 95.80% -10,826 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers In 0 0 5,500 100.00% 5,500 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0 5,500 100.00% 5,500 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (474) (474) (5,800) 91.82% -5,326 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 8,302 8,302 6,100 -36.10% -2,202 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 7,828 7,828 300 -2509.27% -7,528 

-25-



C U fty «Ji ff [)) lUl !ilHD~ e ® 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Tourism Fund - 151 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

REVENUES 

Taxes 6,080 6,080 75,800 91.98% 69,720 

Miscellaneous Revenue 246 246 13,000 98.11% 12,754 

Total REVENUE 6,326 6,326 88,800 92.88% 82,474 

EXPENDITURES 

Materials & Services 

Professional Services 0 0 2,500 100.00% 2,500 
Contractual Services 0 0 112,000 100.00% 112,000 

Total Materials & Services 0 0 114,500 100.00% 114,500 

Capital Outlay 0 0 80,000 100.00% 80,000 

Total EXPENDITURES 0 0 194,500 100.00% 194,500 

EXCESS (deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES 6,326 6,326 (105,700) 105.98% {112,026) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 6,326 6,326 (105,700) 105.98% (112,026) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 116,093 116,093 110,900 -4.68% (5,193) 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 122,419 122,419 5,200 -2254.21% (117,219) 

-26-



Catty off lDlUllllldlee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Fire Station Construction Fund - 201 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

REVENUES 

Miscellaneous Revenue 116 116 0 NA (116) 

Total REVENUE 116 116 0 NA (116) 

EXPENDITURES 

Materials & Services 

Professional Services 1,472 1,472 0 NA (1,472) 

Total Materials & Services 1,472 1,472 0 NA (1,472) 

Capital Outlay 0 0 0 NA 0 

Total EXPENDITURES 1,472 1,472 0 NA (1,472) 

EXCESS {deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES (1,356) (1,356) 0 NA 1,356 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,356) (1,356) 0 NA 1,356 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 60,214 60,214 0 NA (60,214) 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 58,857 58,857 0 NA (58,857) 

-27-



C~ty o~ D!Lll1r11dlee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Bonded Debt - 310 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Current Period Current Year 

Actual Actual Total Budget 

REVENUES 

Taxes 1,194 1,194 148,000 

Miscellaneous Revenue 37 37 1,000 

Total REVENUE 1,232 1,232 149,000 

EXPENDITURES 

Debt Service 0 0 150,200 

Total EXPENDITURES 0 0 150,200 

EXCESS (deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES 1,232 1,232 (1,200) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 1,232 1,232 (1,200) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 17,810 17,810 17,600 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 19,042 19,042 16,400 

-28-

Percent Total 

Budget 

Remaininng 

99.19% 

96.25% 

99.17% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

202.64% 

202.64% 

-1.19% 

-16.11% 

Total Budget 

Variance 

146,806 

963 

147,768 

150,200 

150,200 

(2,432) 

(2,432) 

(210) 

(2,642) 

I 

I 

I 

I 



Cu~lf oif [iJ)lUJ111Ho~ee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Water Fund - 431 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

REVENUES 
Charges for Services 64,129 64,129 617,400 89.61% 553,271 

Miscellaneous Revenue 180 180 3,400 94.71% 3,220 

Total REVENUE 64,309 64,309 620,800 89.64% 556,491 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel Services 21,655 21,655 217,400 90.04% 195,745 

Materials & Services 

Supplies 478 478 12,500 96.18% 12,022 

Professiona I Services 2,158 2,158 8,600 74.90% 6,442 

Contractual Services 0 0 10,000 100.00% 10,000 

Travel & Training 261 261 2,300 88.65% 2,039 

Insurance 0 0 5,700 100.00% 5,700 

Regulatory Requirements 0 0 15,500 100.00% 15,500 

Utilities 1,539 1,539 46,100 96.66% 44,561 

Repairs & Maintenance 250 250 40,800 99.39% 40,550 

lnterfund Services 7,767 7,767 94,000 91.74% 86,233 

Other Materials & Services 753 753 9,700 92.23% 8,947 

Total Materials & Services 13,207 13,207 245,200 94.61% 231,993 

Capital Outlay 0 0 36,000 0.00% 36,000 

Total EXPENDITURES 34,861 34,861 498,600 93.01% 463,739 

EXCESS (deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES 29,448 29,448 122,200 75.90% 92,752 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers Out (3,114) {3,114) {i55,000) 97.99% {151,886) 

Other Uses 0 0 {20,000) 100.00% {20,000) 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) (3,114) {3,114) {175,000) 98.22% . {171,886) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 26,333 26,333 {52,800) 149.87% {79,133) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 61,982 61,982 56,500 9.70% 5,482 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 88,315 88,315 3,700 2286.89% 84,615 

-29-



Cu~y o~ /D[)Jrrildee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Water CJP Fund - 432 
From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Rernaininng Variance 

REVENUES 

Charges for Services 0 0 39,200 100.00% 39,200 

Miscellaneous Revenue 903 903 6,000 84.94% 5,097 

Total REVENUE 903 903 45,200 98.00% 44,297 

EXPENDITURES 

Capital Outlay 0 0 265,000 100.00% 265,000 

Debt Service 0 0 117,300 100.00% . 117,300 

Total EXPENDITURES 0 0 382,300 100.00% 382,300 

EXCESS (deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES 903 903 (337,100) 100.27% -338,003 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers In 0 0 80,000 100.00% 80,000 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0 80,000 100.00% 80,000 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 903 903 (257,100) 100.35% -258,003 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 326,245 326,245 270,600 -20.56% -55,645 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 327,149 327,149 13,500 -2323.32% -313,649 

-30-



Cu~y (Ql~ [D)m1101ee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Sewer Fund - 441 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

REVENUES 

Charges for Services 99,857 99,857 1,331,400 92.50% 1,231,543 

Miscellaneous Revenue 330 330 4,500 92.66% 4,170 

Total REVENUE 100,187 100,187 1,335,900 92.50% 1,235,713 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel Services 16,965 16,965 . 200,200 91.53% 183,235 

Materials & Services 

Supplies 911 911 21,500 95.76% 20,589 

Professional Services 2,116 2,116 40,700 94.80% 38,?84 
Contractual Services 197 197 700 71.91% 503 

Travel & Training 261 261 2,300 88.65% 2,039 

Insurance 0 0 16,700 100.00% 16,700 

Regulatory Requirements 2,210 2,210 5,600 60.54% 3,390 

Utilities 5,965 5,965 85,100 92.99% 79,135 

Repairs & Maintenance 0 0 221,300 100.00% 221,300 

lnterfund Services 6,883 6,883 86,400 92.03% 79,517 

Other Materials & Services 750 750 9,500 92.10% 8,750 

Total Materials & Services 19,294 19,294 489,800 96.06% 470,506 

Total EXPENDITURES 36,258 36,258 690,000 94.75% 653,742 

EXCESS (deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES 63,929 63,929 645,900 90.10% 581,971 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers Out {60,493) (60,493) (745,600) 91.89% (685,107) 

Other Uses 0 0 (20,000) 100.00% {20,000) 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {60,493) (60,493) (765,600) 92.10% (705,107) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3,436 3,436 (119,700) 102.87% (123,136) 

BEGINNING FUND BA~ANCE 159,361 159,361 143,300 11.21% 16,061 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 162,797 162,797 23,600 589.82% 139,197 

-3 1-



Cil~y o~ DOJJirildee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Sewer CIP Fund - 442 
From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 
REVENUES 

Charges for Services 0 0 37,200 100.00% 37,200 

Miscellaneous Revenue 1,123 1,123 22,200 94.94% 21,077 

Tota l REVENUE 1,123 1,123 59,400 98.11% 58,277 

EXP EN DITU RES 

Capital Outlay 0 0 0 NA 0 

Debt Service 0 0 689,200 100.00% 689,200 

Total EXPENDITURES 0 0 689,200 100.00% 689,200 

EXCESS {deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES 1,123 1,123 {629,800) 100.18% {630,923) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers In 55,500 55,500 666,000 91.67% 610,500 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 55,500 55,500 666,000 91.67% 610,500 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 56,623 56,623 . 36,200 -56.42% {20,423) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 514,092 514,092 497,100 -3.42% (16,992) 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 570,715 570,715 533,300 -7.02% (37,415) 

-32-



C~~y COlff [))!UJ[l1)(D1ee 
Statement of Revenue & E xpenditures 

Storm Water Fund- 451 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

REVENUES 

Charges for Services 8,060 8,060 109,800 92.66% 101, 740 

Miscellaneous Revenue 33 33 1,000 96.74% 967 

Total REVENUE 8,093 8,093 110,800 92.70% 102,707 

EXPENDITURES 

Personnel Services 2,857 2,857 28,300 89.90% 25,443 

Materials & Services 

Supplies 127 127 2,300 94.47% 2,173 

Professional Services 21 21 5,600 99.62% 5,579 

Travel & Training 0 0 200 100.00% 200 

Insurance 0 0 200 100.00% 200 

Regulatory Requirements 0 0 100 100.00% 100 

Utilities 104 104 1,100 90.56% 996 

Repairs & Maintenance 0 0 2,700 100.00% 2,700 

lnterfund Services 1,133 1,133 12,100 90.63% 10,967 

Other Materials & Services 3 3 300 99.05% 297 

Total Materials & Services 1,389 1,389 24,600 94.36% 23,211 
' 

Total EXPENDITURES 4,246 4,246 52,900 91.97% 48,654 

EXCESS (deficiency) of REVENUE OVER 

EXPENDITURES 3,847 3,847 57,900 93.36% 54,053 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers Out 0 0 (63,900) 100.00% (63,900) 

Other Uses 0 0 (5,000) 100.00% (5,000) 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0 (68,900) 100.00% (68,900) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3,847 3,847 (11,000) 134.97% (14,847) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 12,700 12,700 12,100 4.96% 600 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 16,547 16,547 1,100 1404.26% 15,447 

-33-



Crny O~ fDOJJWiH01ee 
Statement of Revenue & Expenditures 

Stonn Water CIP Fund - 452 

From 7/01/2019 Through 7/31/2019 

Percent Total 

Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaininng Variance 

REVENUES 

Charges for Services 0 0 15,000 100.00% 15,000 

Miscellaneous Revenue 171 171 1,300 86.87% 1,129 

Total REVENUE 171 171 16,300 98.95% 16,129 

EXPENDITURES 

Capital Outlay 1,361 1,361 111,000 98.77% 109,639 

Debt Service 0 0 23,700 100.00% 23,700 

Total EXPENDITURES 1,361 1,361 134,700· 98.99% 133,339 

EXCESS (deficiency) of REVENUE OVER EXPENDITUR (1,190) (1,190) (118,400) 98.99% -117,210 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers In 0 0 52,000 100.00% 52,000 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0 52,000 0.00% 52,000 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,190) (1,190) (66,400) 0.00% -65,210 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 87,912 87,912 71,400 0.00% -16,512 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 86,722 86,722 5,000 0.00% -81,722 

-34-



WIH IE ff«!E ~~s, the Bureau of the Census in the United States Department of Commerce conducts 

the census and the federal government funds the cost of the census; and 

WHIEIRIEAS, it takes the cooperation and investment of states, local government, and 

community partners working in conjunction with the federal government to ensure that the 

census is fully executed and represents a complete and accurate count of the people within 
each jurisdiction; and 

W~~IE~~IEJ.~S, the results of the census are the foundation for many important decisions made by 
federal, state, and ~ocal government including the disbursement of federal funds to states, 

counties, and municipalities; and the apportionment of political representation based on 
population; and 

Wlli!E~U:AS, census data guides local decision-makers in important community planning 
efforts, ~ ncluding locations for schools, roads, hospitals, child-care and senior citizen centers, 
et cetera; 

NO'VV, TrrlllEIRfEIFOb'1UE, the City Council of the City of Dundee hereby proclaims its support for the 
efforts of the 2020 Census and calls upon the community to participate 

lBIE H fUt~THlrn IRESOILVIED, that the City Council calls on city officials, community leaders, 
representatives of -faith-based and non-profit organizations, and representatives of historically 

undercounted populations to ensure that the City of Dundee is properly and fully counted in 

the 2020 census. 

SIGNED this 17th day of September, 2019. 

David Russ, Mayor 

-35-



-36-



OREGON LIQUOR CO \OL COMMISSION 

uJ01~J(QJ~ ~JCEN§[E ,73\~Pl~ccA·r~o~~:~· 

1, Application. Do not include ·,rny OLCC fees with ymff application packet (the license fee will be collec;ted at a later 
1·irne). Application is being made. for: 

k--- . License ,[\pp!ied For: 

0 _ _Jlrnwery 1st ~_oc_·-a_t_io_n _______ __ _ 
,_._D_.· _B 1_:e_w_e_ry_2 __ 1_1d_L_o_ca_t_io_n ____________ _ 

ClifV AND COUNTY l)SE Ol\ll V 

Date application rei::;eived: 

0 8rewery yd Location ,1 I I(' -f r> J) () .f {) 
!-\ U U .I. J lU !J 

0 Brewery-Public House 1st location 

D Brewery-Public House 2nc1 location 
-----1 Name of City or Coi_mty: 

D Brewery-Public House 3rd location 

,_D __ D_.is_ti_lle_r_y ______________ ----1 Recommends this license be: 
o· Full On-Premises, COmr~erci~------··-----

1 [I Fliil 01i-PremicP:S C =itere·· · - .....J •• 1 -· r 
--· ·---· ----~--- -----· 

D Full On-Premises, Passenger Carrier 

D Full On-Premises, ·mher Public Location 

D Full On~Premises, For ·Profit Private Club 

D Full On-Premises, Nonprofit Private Club 

D Grower Sales _·~~JJ~~e 1st loceition 

D Grower Sales Privilege znd location 
·-------

0 Grnwer Sales Privilege 3rd k>eation 
---· ~ 

D Uh1ited On~Premises 

0 Off-Premises 

D 

0 Granted D Denied 

By: 

Date: 

·- -
OL 

Date application receive 

CC USE ONLY 

d: 

.(5 -- ) '2 -\cf 
I 
' I Off-Premises with i=·uel Pumps 

-· .... -------·--·-

8\nJJ10C D Warehouse ------- By: 
D Wholesale Malt Beverage & WinE: ------' D Winery 1st ~ocation 

Date~p~i~tion accepte 
0 Winery 2rid Location ct~ &· / /l C/ . 
D Winery 3rd Location 

By: --l]wl_cL 
I 

o~-------1 cl as initially complete: 

. . ·-- ·----H.._.._ .. ___ .License Action(s): ~J) _o_ _____ J 

{Applicant #1) (Applicant #2) 

(Applicant #3) (Applicant #4) 

OLCC FINANCIAL SERVICE.S USE ONLY 

L___ ·-· ---- ·--------3-1--- ·--
bLCC Liquor Ucense Af~plication (Rev. 10/2018)· 



OREGO~J LIQUOR cm .C)L COMMISSION 

~J Q1 (L1J (() ~ [lJ C lE ~§LE A~ lP ~J Ci~ 1 ~ (()) ~~ 
3. Applicant #1 Applicant #2 

tpfQ/{,1 "c {, ~. 
Willamette>$~~~~.~ 

Applicant #3 Applicant #4 

4. Trade Name of the Business (Na1'ne Customers Will See) 

Knapsaak Picnic Pi·ovisfqns 
. , 

5. Business Address (Number and Street Address of the Location that Will have the liquor license) 
276 Hwy 99W 

C_ity 

~Jev 
County Zip Code 

sr.e1=wmrd ~o/ \Joovch~L. f . 9+44fJ-9 7 I I> 
6. Does the business address currently h~ve an OLCC llquor ficense? DYES jg] NO 

7. ·Does th,e business address currently have an O~CC nia rijuana license? DYES lliJ NO 

3 . Mailing Address/PO Box, Number, Street, Rural Route (where the OLCC wfll send your mail) 

i 6soo SW Langer Dr Unit i 122 

City ~at~ Zip Code 

Sherwood R 97140 

9. Phone Number of the Business Location I Email Contact for this Applic'1ti0n . r-if ·-
NA .kt!Bpsaak@gmaJkwm ~ /t:Jt'VAp >~-+~;rT/vL,P(, . _. tfi7 ~ 
Contact Person for this Application Phone Number 

Brad Quirie 6199404440 

Niailirig Address City State Zip Code 
{fo)(i}O . . 

OR 97140 RI~ SW Langer Dr Unit 1. i 22 Sherwood 

I und.erstand that marijuana (such as use, consumpfion, ingestion, inhalation, samples, give-away, sale,. etc.) is 

prohibited on the licensed premises. 

I auest that all -answers on a.II fotmsi documents, and information proviqed to th_e OLCC are tru$ ~hd complete. 

Applicant Signature(s) 

a Ea.ch individual person listed as an applicant must sign the application. 

o If an applic~nt is an entity, such as a corporation or LLC; at least onf; person who is au.thorized to sign for the entity 
mp.~t sign the ci'pplication. 

o A person with the authority to sigri on behalfofthe applitant (such as the applicant's attorney or a person .With 
power of attorney) may sign the application. if.a person otherthan an applicant signs the application, p_le·ase 

r'b\!.ide . r. . of of s· ure. authority. 

.(App.lican,t#3) 

(Applicant #2} 

{Applicant #4) 

- 38- OLCC liquor.Licenst;! Applicatio11 (Rev. io/201~} 



OREGON LIQWOR CONIRUL COMMISSION 

u~\~D~\fij[[J1UAt f}=~f! Sui!ORY FOrRM 
---~ , - ,-·. ==··====---· ·:--~. 

-· 

. ~·· ~_af1:1_~__(WT)Quide ... . l _ (fvHDD_L_~)~~-°-'..~~ ··-----·----- .. 
~~ - _ _9_!_1_-,er Na_!'n.c:s. U~e_clJM~ __ i_c~_~_!'.~ -~---~-~.L _____ --·-··- __ . - ···- ---·-- ---·- --- · --- . ···-· - ~ . · -···---·· - ---- -- -· -- · 
3. Do you have a Social Security Number (SS~l} issued by the U.S. Social Security Administration? 
~Yes 0 No If yes, please provide your 551\l: _ 

SOC!J.U. SECURITY NUMBER 01SCL05Uflf:: J\s part of VOL!t application for an initial or renewal license, Federal 
and State laws require you to provide vour Soc ial Secu ri ty l\lurnber (SSN) lo the Oregon Liquor Control 

Commission {OLCC} for child s_upport enforcernent purposes (42 USC§ G6G(a)(13) 8t ORS 25.185). If you are an 
applicant oi· licensee and fail to provide vour 551\!, the OLCC may refuse HJ process your· application. Your SSN 
will be used only for thild suppott enforcement purposes unless you inclicate below. 

Based on our authority undei· ORS 471.31:1. and OAR 845-005-0312(6"), we are requesting your· voluntary tonsent 
to use your $SN for the following Pc!rnini.strative p~irposes only: to match your license application to your . .l\lcohol 

Sc~nier Educatioli _rernrcli (whi.:re applk ~1bfe), a_nd to er:sure ynur iden~it; fo1· crirn.inal records chec;:ks. otcc \'ii!I 
not deny yo.u any rights, benefits or privileges otherwis.e provided by law if you do not consent to use of your 

SSN for these administrative purpose~ (5 USC§ 552(a). 

Do you vo.lunta1~ily consent to the OLCC's u_se of your $SN as just described? [El Yes D No 

·- -··-····· ·-··---- ----··-·- · -- ··-- -· . 

4. £!?~~ ?_f_ BirthJ~(gD/V.yYY): 
6. Driver License or State ID#: 

r 8. Residence Address: 
- ~ h711;Jt~t(#{f\~ p J1 \ 2 

--------'7-,=~,I~.:!:,-;~ [J~ !J l!,"'°:J U. y ii 1 ;-------~1 

17167 SW Terrap.in Dr Unit i 46, Sherwood, OR 97140 Sc;arch Comple_led 

9. Mailing Address (if cliffe·rent): 
16300 SW Langer Dr Uhit 1122, Sherwood, OR 97140 • 1~UG 12 20W 

- -- - ------·- -· -

-ii: 6~0~:~\~~~~::1~!l~~,~~,~~:~~f;~~artn~-,:? fil]ves LJ N~ · - --1n 1mns: JblCd~--OD m 
- ··· . ____ !_~.Y_~~,_ l _~!_!:i_i~_l~~~~~!J_~-~-~~.e.: -~ ~-n- ~~y _9uil:re __ --·------ --- --------·-____ ·--- .. ·-- ·· -·· _ ···- ···· --- _______ -·-··· 
12. If yes to #11, will this person be involved in the management of, or have control over the business? 

0No ~Yes 
13. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted ("convicted" includes paying a fine) in Oregon o.r another U.S. st~te 

-of driving a c;ar with a suspended driver license or driving a car with no insurance? 
ml No .D Y~s (PJe.ase indL1de ·exp_lanation below) D Unswe (Please inclqde explanation below) 

14. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted ("coiwicted" inclLicles paying a fine) in Oregon or another U.S. state 
of a FELONY? 
IBJ No D Yes (Plea$e inducle ~~pla.nation below) D Unsure (Please include explanation below) 

15. Have you ever been in a drug or alcohol diversion program in Oregon c;:>r another U.S. state? A diversion program 
is where you are required, usually by the court or another governrnentogency, to complete certain requirements 

in place of being convicted of a drug qt alcohol-related offense. 

IBJ No CJ Yes {Please include explanation below) D Unsure (Please include expl::mation below) 

-39- OlCC IH t1r-plication (Bev. UG/2017) 



!?===========~=-=-·· ... · - . .. 
16. Do you, or any legal entity that you are a part of, current!v hold or have prev1ousiv held a liquor license or a 

recreational marijuana license in Oregon or another U.S. state? (Not.e: alcohol servke permits and marijuana 
worker permits are not liquor licenses). 
[]No llRJ Yes (Please include explanation below) D Unsure (Please inclu.de explanation below) 
We owned Jola Cafe for 6 years. It was licensed. We sold it June 2018. 

17. Have you, or any legal entity that you are a part of, ever had an application fora license1 permitr or certificate 
denied or camcelled by the OLCC or ~ny other governmental agency in the U.S.? 
~No [] Yes (Please include exp.lanation below) D Unsure (Please indude expli:lnatiori below) 

18. Are you qpplying for a Full On-Prernises, Limited On-Prem.ises, Off-Premi<;es, or Brewery-Public· House license-? 

D Nb Plea~e skip que~tion·s 19 8t 20. Go directly to question 21. . 

lraJYes Please answer questions 19, 20, and 21. 

19. Do you -or will you have any ownership interest in a business that ma11ufactur.es1 wholesales, or distributes alcohol iii Oi"egon or 

another U.S. state? 
li8.1No . D Yes {.Please include explanation below) QUnsure (Ple;;ise inciuoe. e><planation below) 

20. Does or Will ·an alcohol m·anufadurer, wholesaler, or distributor in Oregon or another U.S. state have any' 
ownership interest in your business? 
!fill No Dves (Please include explanation below) CJ Unsure (Ple.ase include e~planation below) 

21. Do you currently have, or.will you have, any ownership interest.in any business in Oregon with a Full On-Premises, 
Ljif1ited On-Premises, Off-Premises1 or s·rewery-Public House license? · · · · 
{;~ 

1
[l1_Yes {Please include ~xplarl,atiori below) Dunsure (Please include explanation below) 

UJ.[ L[0a,(y3ffl (]2(_()/l/~--u LUG 

Ydu must sign your own form. Another person, like your attorney or a person with power of attorney, m~y not sign 
your form .. I affirm that my answers are true ~nd complete. I ~nderstand the OLCC will use the above information to 
check my records1 iricludin·g but not limited to1 criminal history. I understand that ir my ~rnswers are not true a:nd 
complete1 the OLCC may deny my Hte:ns~ ap'plication. 
Name: (~AST) I {FIRST) 

Quirie Brad 
- i 

I (MIDQ~E) 

r~~t:~J I . I Signature: 0 ~ j ) ----~/ 
. ~~GX-~ ~ -----

( ( 

-40- OLCC IH .'\pplii:ation (Rev. 06/2017) 



1. 1Y.arne: (LAST)Qui! ie . (F1ns1)Jenny . (M!L1DLE)i-\n.n ··-· 

2 .. (_?~her. r~ames_ U-2_~l_.J!Y.1._a_~den, El:c.): Frib~rg . . -··· 
3. Do you have a Social Security l\lurnber (SSN) issued by the U.S. Social Security Administration? 

(g] Yes D No If yes, please provide your SSN: __ . 

SOCLl\L SECURITY NU!VlStR DiSClOSURE: As part of your application for an ir1iti[-Jl or ren ewa l licens.e, Federal 

a·nc1 State laws require you to prnvidr.: your Soc ial Security Number (S Sl\J) to the Oregon Liquor Contrnl 

·Commissio11 (Ol.CC) for child ~ upport enforc:ernent purposes (42 USC§ 66G(a)(.l3) & OH$ 25.785). If you 21re a11 

applicant or licensee and fail to provide your SSl\J, th::· OLCC 111J'/ re f'us 1~ to process vour app lication. Your SS f\J 
will be used only for child support e11forc:e11wnt purposes unlrss you imlicc1te belovv. 

Based on ou1· authority under ons 471.311 a11cl OAR 845-005-0312(6), we are requesting your voluntary consent 

to use your SSf'I For the follovvi11g- aclrninistr~~tive purposes onlv: to nE1tch VOLlr licen se application to your Alcohol 
Si:rver f:clurntion rec.:orcls (where applicable), and to emure vour icl~~11tity for crirninal records checks, OLCC will 
not cle11v yoLi any rights, benefit s or privileges othenivi.se provid 1~ d bv lz1~v if you do not consent to use of your 
SSN for these administrative purposes (5 USC.§ 55 2(a). 

Do you voJuntarHy consent to the OLC"C's use ofyour SSN asjLfst desc;ribed? IBJ Yes D No 

-·--·-···-··· -······ ··· · .. . -· - - ··-·---- - - -- . ·· -·- ---- - · - · ·--- ·-· - --- ,--- . · - · - ·· . ·- -·- - . ·--- ····-· - · ----·····-···· 

4. Date of B~·~Ji'{JM/~.QL~Y'!Y): Q5 _____ _ L~_!__ ___ / ]977 _ _ ._:__?. Con!~~~-.~~~~: .~:?.o~3_3_s·_17_3_02 _________ --'J 

6. Driver License or State ID /:/:: 7. State:OR 
I 8. Residence Address.: 
! 

17167 SW Terrapin Dr ./f14$, Sherwood, OR 97i4o 

9. Mailing ~.clclress (if different): 
16300 SW Langer Dr, Unit 112-2. Sherwood, OR 97·140 

i'1~ ~J\_~=-:7· · ,.,,.._ ... ~--. -
l~)i:·~.~- ~/ . {, ~ h ' 1' J 11 { 

=-~:J.. J a '~ i 
·searc;;h' Como/ t . . ··-·---· _ . -·- ·-e-ed. . ·----·- ·····- ··-

10. E-Mail (optional): 
I.I 11: Do .you· · ·have· a-s-p·o-~se or dornes.ticp·a·i:t-i1eri r:illYes l~~l No ·Al/6-12 "?om~·---· 

If yes, list his/her full name: Brad ·ouirie . _ _ '· _ 

12. s~~io-u~;:-~_''.:1-so~/,;; 1nva1v~ci in the r~a;1~gement a~, · ,;~1~a~~-~O rt1Ni~i1M.!i\~~'2~fil6[)-
1n the past 10 years, hcivf! you been convicted ("convicted" includes paying a fine) in Oregon or another U.S. state 

of driving a car with a suspended driver license or driving a car with no in$urance!' 
fR1 No D Yes (Please include explanation below) D Unsure (Please include expl(lnation below) 

· ··-· - - - -· ·- ·---- -----···· -- .. -- ... ·- · · · · ··- -~- - - .-- - . - ----
14. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted (11convictecl" includes paving a fine) in Oregon or another U.S. state 

bf a FELONY? 
[ill No D Yes (Please include explanation bt:iow) D Unsure (Plea~e include explanation below) 

1 .. is.- l~ave you e~e7 be~;;ir;·~ drug or ciicoh~I f[~·,~;io.n p.rng~:c11~n - i1~1 Oregoi1 01-·~ no:t·h~r tJ.5. st~-te?--A diver~-i~·nPi·ogran~ .. 
is whereyou are required, usuaHy by tlie court or another govern!llent agency, to co111plete certain requirements 
in place of being coiwicted of (I drug or alcohol-related offense. 
IBJ No 0 Yes .(Please lndude explanation below) Ounsure (Please indude explanation below) 

-41- mt..c 111 Applita.tidn (Rev .. 06/2017) 



ri6. Do yo.u, or an~l~~titVth~t y~u are.a par~t ~;~~~~~d o~~;·p-·rev"fouslv held a liquor lic:~ ·nse or a 
rec1'eqtional rnarijuan'a license in Oregon or another l).S. stcite ·;i (Note: alcohol service permits and mariju.ana 

worker permits are not liquorlicenses) . . 
~ @ No D Yes (Please include explanation below) 0 UnsLrre (Pl.ease include explanation bel9W) 

11 

I 
- ------- - - - -# ·-------- -·- - --------------' 

-i7. Have.you, or any legal entity that yot:1 are a part of, ever had an application for ct license, permit, or certificate 
denied or cance!lecl by the OLCC or any other governmenta I agency in the U.S.? 
mJ No D Yes (Pleqse indude e1<planation beJow) D Unsure (Please include explanation below) 

~ 

i 
a . 

~ :18. ~i- _e ye>u applying fat·~ Full 01~-Prernises , limited On~ Pre;r;·ises, Off-Premises, or Brewe.ry-Public House license? 

ij f? No Please skip C(uestions 19 & 20 .. Go clirectry _to cfu·estion 21 

lj IBJYes Please answer questions 19-, 20, and 21. 

~ ----- - -------·- -··------------------ ------------· 
P. 19. Do you or will you have any.ownership inte1'esl in~ busines_s that ti1ahu.factures, wholesales, or diStributes alcoh,ol in Oregon or 
~ anotherU.S. state? 

~No [] Yes (Pl.ease include explanation be.low) D Unsure (Please include explanation below) 

f 
L I 20. Does or Wiil an alcohol manufacturer, wholes'aler, or distrll:JLitorfo Oregon or another US state have any I ownership interest in your business? 
I llil Nb D Yes (Please ind ucle exp la nat ici n below) 0 Unsure (Please include explanation below) 

ri 
( --- --- -- . . -- - ·-· . · -- ·- ·---·---- --- --·- - --------- ----.,'! 

21. Do you currently have, or \1vill you have, any ownership interest in any business in Oregon with a Full On-Premises, 
Lirnited On-Premises, Off-Premises, or Bre\very-Pup_lic ·House license? 

0 No l8Jves {Please include explanation below) D Unsme (Please include explan~tion below) 
Willamette Picnic LLC 

You must sign your own form. Another person, like your attorney or a person With power ofatton1ey, ma_y hot sign 
ydur form. I .affirm that iilV answers are true and complete . I understand the OLCC will use the above information to 
d1eck my records, including but riot limited to .. criminal history. I understand that if 1iW answers ai·e hot true.and 

~
complete; the OLCt may den_y _my fi ·c. ense. _applicatio~.:____ --- ··- ··- ·- --

ame: (LAST) 
1 

(l ·IRST) : (MIDDl E) 

irie ;Jenny .Ann 

· gnatu\·e:(; . · · \. ;r:): ·· _· ·-----~-oate·---------f 

. O :/Al11/! (1 ··. ~-· -(4_~4 ( l ~c _, I . . 0810812019 

\ 

- 42- OLCC IH Appllcatio·n (Rev, OG/20PI 



OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMf\/llSSION 

BUS~~\~ESS ~N~~ (oR~~~ft\nC»N 

Pf easf:J Print or Type 

Applicant Name: (;l/; 1/1{,J/f/l~ Pt C- vv~v L.LL Phone: ~~' 0 I °! 1 io L/.y '-/ o 

Trade Narrte (dba): K~· \_°'-//SC\...0i._lc P1c~ /7 vov/·0<37/lf 

Busfness Location Address: ~7~ ~~~~~~-~~------------------
ZIP Code~ er I I! J~ 

r;:; . --'--" - ·---------·-----'----·-·- . . ·-- .,, _______ _ , ____ ---=1 

1@'~~?© ~.~f~l@ GC@'f!fl~ CQ~ @~~~~Jl~~~];!J-------··- · ··-~--- ·-·----

Business Hours: 
Sunday '1 f\~I\ lo ~ 
Monday . q ! tol~ 
Tuesday °I l to 7 _ 
Wednesday 9 j to ':; . 

ThLJrsoBy *j to ~ 
Friday _!1 to ; . 
Saturday . q to 7 l 

Qutd.oor Al'ea Hours: 

sunclay 
Monday 

___ to ___ _ 
___ to __ _ 

Tuesqay ~6 -'-. __ 
Wednesday to __ _ 
Thursday .to. __ _ 
Friday ____ to __ _ 
Saturday to __ _ 

The outdoor area i~ LfS<?d for: 

- Foo . evice ~~cy_l__ 

. !coho se ~Ho~Ll_ 
0 Enclosed, how--,--------
The· exterior area is .adequately vfewed and/or 
supervised by Service Permittees. 

-------. (!nvestigator'.s Initials) 

Seasonal Variations:· P Yes ~ No If yes 1 explaln~------------------

~ ~~'1~0011.ff Che~k~ all-that app-1-y: \J .. -A==-~~-W~~@?'CT:ll'@®J$@JJ[iVj](1r@.fi1· 
~-1 It\ - ~ · · . 

0 Live Music D l<araoke /VA-
D D . Sunday to __ _ 

Re.corded ML1sic Co!n-operated Games Monday to __ _ 

D bJ Music D Video Lottery Machine_s IJ . Tuesday to 
Wednesday ___ to __ _ 

D Dancing D SodalGaming Thursday ___ to __ _ 

D N1,Jde Entertainers 

Lounge: 0 
Banquet: 0 

Friday 
D Poof T?bles Saturday 

___ to __ _ 
___ to __ _ 

D rnher: ______ _ 

·Outdoor: 0 
bth$r (exp'!c:iin}: 

=============····· .. ··:::i 

OLCC USE ONLY 

lrivestiga!or VE?rified Sea'ting: _ _(Y) _ _ (N) 

fnvesti_g9tor Initials: _______ _ 

0 Date: 

1
. complete, the OLCC may deny my licens7 appl!ication~ 

ti · ..--/ · I /f>i 
· . Date: · ~1o L~I. 

. - r r 
~~ ~aoo .. 452~otcc (6522). 

www.oregon.gov/olcc (rev. 12/07) 
~43-



OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION 

f.l(Q.)0~ ~lArr~ 
o Your floor plan must be submitted on this form. 
o Use a separate Floor Plan Form for each level or floor of the buildlng. 
o The floor pian(s) must show the spec'ific areas of your premises (e.g. dining area, bar, lounge, dance fl.oar, 

video lottery room, kitchen, restrooms, outside pC\tio an.d sidewf?l.I< cafe areas.) 
o Include· all tables and chairs (see example on back of th.is form). Include dimensions for each tabie If you are applying fOr a 

Full On-Premises Sales license. 

11--
1 

i 
I 1.-=o=~-,, 

I 

Retail 

Food Refigerator '==B=e=v=er=a=g=e·=c=o=o=le=r~lb===F=oo=d==R-e-fig=e=r=a=to-r=====-~' 

Ch-eek Jut Counter $a-mp1$ .Counter 

Retail 

Retajl Display 
Text 

.......... OLCC USE ONLY. ....... .. ~anLName -

l.f"\:;~lamette Picnic LLCfoba Knapsaak Picnic Provlsions 

MINOR POSTING ASSIGNMENT(S) 

Tr.a-de Name (dba): / 

bur:idee 97115 

City and ZIP Code 
1 .. soo· .. 452.,oLcc (6522) 

www.oregon;gov/olcc {rev. 09/1.2) 

-44-



AGENDA REPORT 

To: Mayor Russ and City Council 

From: Rob Daykin, City Administrator 

Date: September 12, 2019 . 

Re: WWTP Membrane Manual Clean 

As reported at the August 6 meeting, the membranes in Train 2 of the wastewater treatment plant will 
require a manual clean due to dewatering and buildup of excess material between the membranes. 
Quotes were solicited from five contractors to suppo1i the removal and re-installation of the membrane 
cassettes following their physical cleaning by City crews - see attached letter from Michael Humm, 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. The manual clean is expected to staii by September 24 and the cassettes 
re-installed the following week. One of the cassettes in Train 2 also indicated the possibility of 
damaged membrane caiiridges. We have limited inventory, additional cartridges are about $125 each 
and additional replacements may be obtained from Kubota in Seattle. In a prior manual clean Kubota 
destructed a sample caiiridge and found it to be in good condition. We will request Kubota to update 
their assessment on the remaining life of the cartridges. 

Kennedy Jenks and Kubota representatives visited on site and discussed maintenance schedules and 
procedures with WWTP Operator Nunley. While additional information will be obtained after fully 
draining the basin and cleaning the membranes, Michael Humm will discuss preliminary findings and 
recommendations with Council at the September 17 meeting. 

Recommendation: Motion accepting the quote in the amount of $13 ,4 7 5 from RL Reimers for 
removal and re-installation of membrane cassettes. 

-45-



-46-



n.<e· n.noa, UV le·t' k-u::. · '-· .,,..=1 n s 

September 5, 2019 

Mr. Rob Daykin 
City Administrator 
City of Dundee 
PO Box 220 
620 SW 5th Street 
Dundee, OR 97115 

Subject Engineers Recommendation of Award 
WMP Membrane Cleaning Support Services 
City of Dundee, Oregon 
1776010.00 

Dear Mr. Daykin: 

The membranes within Train 2 of the City's wastewater treatment plant have been experiencing issues 
with low permeability. The permeability is the rate which water can be passed through the membranes. 
As tnat decreases, so too does the overall capacity of the membrane bioreactor (MBR) system. Low 
permeability was identified though the plant's control system and resulted in the City staff completing a 
visual inspection of the membranes. This inspection found the membranes to be physically clogging 
with buildup of sludge material seen in a number of places in-between the tightly spaced membrane 
cassettes. Following visual inspection, Kennedy Jenks and Kubota made site visits to support the 
diagnosis and develop a path to resolve this problem. In addition to the clogging, or perhaps as a result, 
the effluent has elevated total suspended solids. This is an indication that somewhere in the membrane 
basin there is a physical break and the contents of the process basin are passing into the treated 
permeate. Staff have isolated this issue to one set of membrane cassettes, and it is believed that there 
is a tear in a membrane that will require replacement when the system is taken down for cleaning. 

In order to remedy the clogging of the membranes, a physical clean is needed. This will require 
removing the cassettes from the basin where they can be more easily accessed. The exterior metal 
panels will then be removed, and the interior of the cassettes will be cleaned to remove the clogging. In 
order to do this work, the process connections within the basin and the hoisting of the cassettes 
requires a contractor. This scope of work was summarized in a request for quote package that was 
then solicited to contractors. 

This is a very similar scope of work previously used for this operation and generally includes removal 
and hoisting of the cassettes by the Contractor. The city staff will be responsible for the actual cleaning 
of the membranes as well as supplying and replacing any of the membrane consumables (membrane 
plates, tubing, gaskets, etc.). The city will also be supplying piping gaskets should any of the piping 
connections within the basin need gaskets replaced. 

Kennedy Jenks contacted five local General Contractors to request bids for this scope of work and 
received quotes from one of the five Contractors as summarized in the Table 1 below. The four 
remaining contractors notified us that while they would have liked to bid on the project, all staff were 
committed to other projects for the rest of the summer. This is consistent with the bidding climate right 

421 SW 5th Avenue, Suite 1000 I Portland , OR 97204 

Phone: 503-423-4000 
l\por2\dalalprojecls\2017117750 10 .00 _ d undee _ cily _ engineeringl 10-engdesignl 10. 04-dsgnnotescalcs\membranef ouling 2019\dunde e mbr cleaning recommendation letter_ 9 .5 .19 _fin al. clocx 

-47-



"·· I 
I r\enned\I Jenks . l J 

September 5, 2019 

Mr. Rob Daykin 
September 5, 2019 
17760 'I O'<Oo 
Page 2 

now as we've seen contractors choosing to pass on opportunities because of their current workload 
and backlog. Addit ionally, the relatively small contract value of th is project and the fact that a large 
component of the cost is tied into the crane rental equipment likely is contributing to the limited interest 
The Contractor bid is included in Attachment A. 

Table 1: Summary of Membrane Cleaning Contractor Bids 

JR Merit Did not quote 

Water & Wastewater Service Did not quote 

RL Reimers $13,475 

Slayden Did not quote 

StellarJ Did not quote 

In addition to the scope of work described above, the bid also included mobilization, safety equipment, 
and coordination with City staff. 

Based on the bid received, Kennedy Jenks recommends the contract for Membrane Cleaning Support 
Services at the City's WVVTP be awarded to RL Reimers for a cost lump sum, not-to-exceed cost of 
$13,475. 

Please contact me at your convenience if you would like to discuss the bids or the cleaning process 
further. 

Very Truly Yours, 

~<ENNEDY/JENKS CONSULTANTS 

Michael Humm, P.E. 

Enclosures: 

Attachment A - Contractor Membrane Cleaning Bid 

\\por2\data\projecls\2017\17760'1 O.OO_dundee_city _engineering\·I O·engdesig11\ 10.04-dsgnnotescalcs\membranefouling2019\dundee mbr cleaning recommendation letter _9.5.19_final.docx 

-48-

I 

I 

I 

I 



0 

August 29, 2019 

Dana Devin-Clarke 
Kennedy Jenks and Associates 
421 SW 6th Ave, Suite 1000 
Portland, OR 97204 

RE: Dundee MBR Cleaning Scope 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide a quote on the project. We are pleased to provide the 
necessary labor and equipment to remove the membrane cassettes for cleaning by city staff 
and reinstall roughly one week later. All work will be per the scope letter sent on August 26th, 
2019. 

Exclusions: 
Engineering 
Performance/Payment Bonds 
Permits 
Job specific insurance 
Startup and testing services 

Payment terms: Net 30 days 

Total= $13.475.00 

If you have any questions regarding this quote, please feel free to contact me at (971) 304-
5661 

Sincerely, 

11.-- tfL-
Ross Meyer 
Project Manager 

3939 Old Salem Road NE Suite #200 ° Albany, Oregon 97321 ° (541) 926-7766 ° CCB 60891 

-49-



-50-



AGENDA REPORT 

To: Mayor Russ and City Council 

From: Rob Daykin, City Administrator 

Date: September 12, 2019 

Re: Fire Station Floor Repair 

Following completion of the roofrepairs and other related work by Porter Construction, Baldwin 
General Contracting, Inc. was notified by the City to provide submittals for review of their work 
related to the concrete slab floors per the Mutual Settlement Agreement executed last year. Baldwin 
representatives met on site with Chief Stock and the City's consultant Jim Omundson in early May. 
After months of review and rejection of various proposals, Baldwin finally provided a scope of work 
and fee with a qualified contractor for a product that satisfies the terms of the Agreement. 
Unexpectedly, Baldwin also requested to pay the City the amount budgeted for this work so to be 
relieved of future obligations related to the floor repairs. Staff discussed this proposal Jim Omundson 
and came to the conclusion that this would be acceptable after meeting with the contractor on site to 
review the scope of work. Jim Omundson started the process of getting quotes for the work that 
would have been self-performed by Baldwin, including removing and relocating cabinets, turnout 
lockers, appliances, and other plumbed facilities, and re-striping the bay floors. Omundson 
determined the City will be able to perform all work related to the floor repairs within the budget 
amount and pay for his time coordinating and inspecting the work. Omundson intends on providing 
an updated budget for the floor repair project for review at the September 17 council meeting. 

The attached Amendment No. 1 was prepared by Jim Omundson and provided to the city attorney for 
review. Following approval of Amendment No. 1 and payment by Baldwin to the City, staff will bring 
back a proposal from the contractor at the next available council meeting for review and approval. 1 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the city administrator to execute Amendment No. 1 to the 
Mutual Settlement Agreement with Baldwin General Contracting, Inc. 

1 Since Baldwin is no longer performing the work, the City will have to comply with State of Oregon procurement laws 
and will be recommending an exemption to competitive bidding to avoid unnecessary delay and additional costs. Note: In 
either case, BOU wages apply. 

-51-



-52-



MUTUAl SfETTUEMlENT AGRlElEMlENT 
AmemdlmeU11il: No. 1 

This amendment revises terms found in Section V., "BALDWIN'S PERFORMANCE," of the 

original Mutual Settlement Agreement signed by Baldwin on August 6, 2018. 

The first paragraph of Section V., beginning "A Scope of Work for concrete slab ... " is removed in 

its entirety. The deleted paragraph is replaced with the following: 

In lieu of Baldwin performing the work described in !Exhibit 1, Baldwin shall pay 

to the order of City of Dundee $79,860 no later than September 24, 2019. This 

payment satisfies all Baldwin obligations relative to concrete floor repair. 

THE CITY OF DUNDEE BALDWIN GENERAL CONTRACTING, INC. 

Signature: _________ _ 

Print: ------------
Tit I e: ------------
Date: ------------

Signature: _________ _ 

Print: ------------
Tit I e: -----------
Date: ------------

Page 1of1-MUTUAL SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, Amendment No. 1 

-53-



-54-



· AGENDA REPORT 

To: Mayor Russ and City Council 

From: Rob Daykin, City Administrator 

Date: September 12, 2019 

Re: Highway 99W Street Light Project Update 

In April 2019 PGE expanded their LED street light fixture choices to allow Option B. Under Option 
B, the City owns the street lights, but PGE will maintain them. This allows for a much lower monthly 
fee compared to Option A in which PGE owns and maintains the street lights. Currently, the entire 
City's local street lights are Option A. 1 The City initially planned on owning and maintaining the 
street lights with the highway improvements project since the TE grant covered their installation. 
However, with the recent change in the street light tariff City Council directed staff to explore the 
possibility of using the Westbrooke fixture offered by PGE under Option B. DKS Consultants 
reviewed site conditions with PGE representatives regarding the installation of street lights along 
Highway 99W in Dundee and determined the street light bases and junction boxes installed by the City 
as part of Phase A of the highway improvements project are not acceptable to PGE and would have to 
be replaced to be eligible for Option B. 

Since it would be cost prohibitive to upgrade the installed facilities that do not meet PGE's 
requirements, we considered Option C and metered service alternatives. Under Option C the City will 
own the street light system and is responsible for its maintenance. The monthly fee for energy use 
paid to PGE is based on a table of approved fees based on the wattage rating of the various fixtures. 
With Option C, the monthly amount is fixed throughout the year. Under the metered service 
approach, the City still owns the street light system and is responsible for its maintenance; however, 
energy use is metered and will vary from month to month based on the duration of lighting throughout 
the year. For comparison of these two approaches, it is assumed that the fees paid to PGE for energy 
consumption will essentially be the same on an annual basis and the additional monthly costs will be 
the $10.00 per meter base charge. However, the City will also be responsible for the future pedestrian 
activated beacons, including the monthly energy use, and PGE meters will be required for those 
facilities. DKS assured the City that the two meters would be able to serve both the street lights and 
the pedestrian beacons. Also, with the metered street light approach, the City would be able to provide 
foi· other limited electrical uses attached to the poles, such as illuminated seasonal decorations and 
radar speed displays. Currently, the City pays $113.56 per month for the highway street lights under 
Option A. The following table breaks down the monthly estimated energy cost for the various options 

1 The Dundee Improvements Design Standards will now go back to Option B as the standard for street lights installed in 
public rights of way. This allows the cost of the initial pole and fixture investment to be paid by the developer, instead of 
PGE, in order to get the lower monthly fee for the City. 

-55-



available with PGE on the LED Westbrooke street lights to be installed with the Highway 99W 
improvements project. 

Estimated 
OPTB 

Option B 
OPTC 

Option C Schedule 32 
Monthly QTY 

(95) 
Monthly 

(95) 
Monthly Metered 

kWh Total Total Service* 
35W LED Westbrooke 13 49 $2.10 $102.90 $1.36 $66.64 $66.64 
52W LED Westbrooke 18 20 $2.88 $57.60 $2.21 $44.20 $44.20 
68W LED Westbrooke 23 7 $3.64 $25.48 $2.84 $19.88 $19.88 
Aluminum Non-Fluted 
Ornamental 76 $0.63 $47.88 
Westbrooke Pole 

Base Charge (Single Phase) $20.00 

I 76 l $233.86 $130.72 $150.72 

*Estimated Energy Usage+ Base Meter Charge 

Following installation and activation of the new Westbrook street lights, the City will order the 
removal of the last remaining high pressure sodium (HPS) lights attached to the PGE poles2

. The City 
will need to pay PGE any undepreciated value remaining on the lights at the time of their removal. I 
hope to have a current estimate of that remaining undepreciated value by the September 17 meeting. 
Also, since Option B is no longer viable DKS will share additional alternatives to the Westbrooke that 
will not compromise quality or the budget. I hope to have that additional information at the September 
17 meeting. 

2 It appears some of the HPS lights have failed since the 2014'transition to LED citywide and were replaced with LED 
fixtures. It is possible in lieu of paying a fee for the undepreciated value of the LED fixtures; the City may elect to relocate 
them at alternate PGE poles at no additional cost. Staff will explore this option in more detail. 

-56-



AGENDA REPORT 

To: Mayor Russ and City Council 

From: Rob Daykin, City Administrator 

Date: September 12, 2019 

Re: Resolution No. 2019-11 , Disability Policy Amendment 

Resolution No. 2019-11 was prepared to amend the Disability Payment provision in the Employee 
Handbook. Changes include: 

1. Clarifies the available leave hours will be used to supplement the time loss payment from 
Workers' Compensation until consumed. 

2. Deletes the option of employee turning the disability payment over to the City to buy down 
leave hours. 

3. Clarifies the continuation of employee health coverage and suspension of accrual of vacation, 
sick or other benefits while on disability leave that is same policy under the Family Medical 
Leave policy described in the Employee Handbook. 

Below is a redline version of the changes to the Disability Payment provision. 

Disability Payment 
Any employee that receives a disability payment while on leave under the Industrial Accident Laws 
will ooly-be paid the difference by Dundee between their disability payment and regular salary, 
provided they have accrued an adequate amount of paid leave. If forms of paid leave are depleted, the 
employee will not receive any salary or wages from Dundee. Upon receipt of any disability 
compensation, the employee must promptly rep01i the amount received to the City Administrator. 
Dundee and employee may prefer to have the employee sign over the disability compensation check to 
Dundee with Dundee paying the employee their regular ·.vages and subtracting the appropriate amount 
of leave time from the employee's leave bank. The City of Dundee will continue the employee health 
coverage under any group health plan during the period covered by the disability payment on the same 
terms as if the employee had continued to work. The employee must continue to make regular 
contributions to the cost of the health insurance premiums during the disability period. Employees 
will not accrue vacation, sick, or other benefits while the employee is on disability leave. 

-57-



-58-



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-H 

A RESOLUTKON AMJEN][HNG THJE lEMJPLOYlElE HANDBOOK 

WHJERJEA§, the City of Dundee passed Resolution No. 2018-01, adopting the Employee Handbook, 
on February 20, 2018; and 

WHJERJEAS, from time to time the Council deems it necessary to update practices and procedures 
pertaining to employees. 

NOW THERJEJFORE, BlE KT RESOLVED THAT: 

The subsection titled Disability Payment in Chapter IV. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, Section C. 
Workers' Compensation and Safety on the Job, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Disability Payment 

Any employee that receives a disability payment while on leave under the Industrial Accident Laws 
will be paid the difference by Dundee between their disability payment and regular salary, provided 
they have accrued an adequate amount of paid leave. If forms of paid leave are depleted, the 
employee will not receive any salary or wages from Dundee. Upon receipt of any disability 
compensation, the employee must promptly report the amount received to the City Administrator. 
The City of Dundee will continue the employee health coverage under any group health plan during 
the period covered by the disability payment on the same terms as if the employee had continued to 
work. The employee must continue to make regular contributions to the cost of the health insurance 
premiums during the disability period. Employees will not accrue vacation, sick, or other benefits 
while the employee is on disability leave. 

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR this 1 i 11 day of September, 2019. 

David Russ, Mayor 

Attest: 

Rob Daykin, City Recorder/City Administrator 

-59-



-60-



AGENDA REPORT 

To: Mayor Russ and City Council 

From: Rob Daykin, City Administrator 

Date: September 12, 2019 

Re: Parks Advisory Committee Appointments 

Attached is an application from Kristin Gorton for appointment to the Parks Advisory Committee 
(PAC). Kristin attended and took part in the discussion at the August 7 and September 4 PAC 
meetings. 

Resolution No. 2009-03 establishes the following membership qualifications of the Parks Advisory 
Committee: 

• No more than one member shall reside outside of the City of Dundee 
• Members shall represent a cross-section of the community to include geographic and 

demographic diversity 
One member shall be a member of the City Council and chair the meetings 

If Council appoints Kristin Gorton, the membership of the Parks Advisory Committee will be as 
follows: 

Jeannette Adlong, Chair 
Nick Gilbert 
David Dixon 
Jill Bilka 
Noel Johnson 
Beth Humphrey 
Kristin Gorton 

Residence 

142 SW Red Hills Drive 
460 NW 1st Street 
685 SW 5th Street 
740 SW Graystone Place 
962 SW Tomahawk Place 
110 SW Brier Avenue 

1240 SW 1st Street 

Recommendation: Motion to appoint Kristin Gorton to the Parks Advisory Committee. 

-61-



-62-



(:;;~ pu ~~- [})IE IE Q D1~gmi 
~ 

-P wr ~s 
J10tfltt§M COMMITTEE 

AJPJPLICAT][ON 

The Mayor and City Councilors of the City of Dundee are seeking applications from individuals 
interested in serving on the Dundee T~ Committee. 

eav-k3. /) . /1 ' 
The dut!es of Jh1 Tourism itte · elude.: ( / , ,, / . 1 . ~ / . . 

11. D.eve~pment o g-pn1 strategic t!'an aun9d at proiyoti'ng tour1sm.!"jhe city 
throug th~·'use of a tra¢ient toom tax. · · l / .- / / / / ; · I 

.2/ RecoinmenClati?1 to, the cf u~cil on p/ogran;is for 1,lslf th~ fl ~d ~nnf al bl!dget 
appro ntt1ons for tile tour1s;m fund. i / . / .· l 1 

/, \../ \_/,../ 

8. W orlang with t~(f,/city adb1nistrator on imp~emeny: ion pf ourism promotion 
progr s and developmenUf tourism-related facilitieS. 1,, 

I 0 , ' }/ - q·7 .1,r5 
Address: _t _)_-'_~,_-- _· __ ~_()~{~ __ __._f -~-"--~-'=-·"_\ ---=---(;_~ _V?_e-_U._ ,,_<?.._ __ ----'---t _ t_ 1 __ _ 

-63-



-64-


































